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Chairpersonõs Report 

Wendy Duncan, MLA, Member for Kalgoorlie, visited Leonora during the    

Leonora Golden Gift festivities from 31 May to 2 June. During her visit Wendy 

joined Elaine Labuschagne, Manager Economics & Heritage  Services and 

Kate Ferguson, journalist from The West      

Australian for a visit to the Gwalia State  

Hotel. Thank you to St Barbara Ltd. for the     

special permission to view the State Hotel 

as it is usually closed to the public.  

  

Kate Ferguson wrote an excellent article 

based on her visit to Gwalia. It was         

published in The West Australian on 14 June 

2014 and she also  produced a video clip on 

Gwalia. The link to the video:  

https://au.news.yahoo.com/thewest/video/
watch/24235777/the-ghosts-of-gwalia/ 

Gemma Smith from Hocking Heritage      

Studio visited Gwalia 5 to 7 May 2014 to   

prepare five more Heritage Impact       

Statements, bringing the total to 17  Impact 

Statements for Shire -owned buildings in 

Gwalia.  

The conservation work on the Leonora tram 

started on 9 

June. We will 

give an update 

in the next 

newsletter.  

 

The Shire of 

Leonora also hosted 60 German travel agents on 

4 May. They had a tour of Gwalia ghost town 

before going up to Hoover House for a meal on 

the verandah overlooking the beautiful garden 

and the open pit.  

 

The first public talk was held on 12 June with 

Jean Lyneham as guest speaker. The aim is to 

hold public talks every two months. The next 

speaker is Anne Skinner on Tuesday 12 August 

and the topic is Goldfields To Battlefields - 

Stories behind the Sons of Gwalia Honour Roll 

1914 -1918.  

 

Tralee Cable helped Convict Bags with their 

photo -shoot at Gwalia 26 -27 April. Traleeõs 

hard work and the time she dedicated paid off 

and Convict Bags were very happy with the end result and it helps to       

promote Gwalia ghost town & museum. Read more about this in the next 

newsletter.  

 

Matt Taylor  
Chairperson:  

Gwalia Reference Group  
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Wendy and Ian Duncan at the  

Gwalia State Hotel, the last      

State Hotel still remaining in WA  

Kate Ferguson from The West 

Australian at work               

recording  interviews. 

https://au.news.yahoo.com/thewest/video/watch/24235777/the-ghosts-of-gwalia/
https://au.news.yahoo.com/thewest/video/watch/24235777/the-ghosts-of-gwalia/
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The Road Doesnõt Go There Any More 

Jean Lyneham  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Have you ever whizzed along the blacktop from Leonora to Wiluna in your four -wheel -drive, radio 

on, air -conditioner and lounge -type seats making the ride comfortable?   Didnõt take long, did it?   

Did you spare a thought for those who went on 

the now -hidden road, those who jolted along by 

Cobb and Co coach, hot in summer, freezing in 

winter, covered in dust or mud?   The coming of 

the motor car did not improve the dust, mud, 

heat and cold, but did speed up the journey.  

Whether the travellers went by coach or car, 

they still stopped at all the hotels along the way.   

 

Jean lived in such a corrugated -iron pub at  

Kathleen Valley when she was a child. Other 

pubs at Doyleõs Well, Lawlers, Agnew and Mount 

Sir Samuel were still there, gradually fading until 

only Agnew and Kathleen Valley were left.  Now 

there is only the Agnew pub.  

 

The road has been realigned, so that only those 

taking the old dirt road can find these places now, and their very existence is forgotten. The  

Lawlers -Wiluna journey took almost three days, with two overnight stops.  Once the railway 

reached Leonora (1903), the coach route from Leonora to Lawlers was established.  

 

Jean Lyneham (nee Moriarty) presented a public talk about the Old Coach Road to Wiluna on 12 

June at Hoover House.  Jean  would like to thank the Shire of Leonora for providing food and    

refreshments and Gail and Gary Ross for preparing the food and setting up the venue; and Elaine 

Labuschagne for initiating and arranging the talk. The event was a great success.  

Matt Taylor, GRG Chairperson, welcoming Jean 

Lyneham and guests 

Locals and visitors enjoyed the talk and opportunity 

to spend time in the beautiful Hoover House  

Matt Taylor, Jean Lyneham, Tralee Cable, Denise 

and Michael Lorentz 

Public Talk  

 

Goldfields To Battlefields  

Stories behind the Sons of Gwalia Honour Roll 1914 -1918  

 

Guest Speaker: Anne Skinner  

Venue: Hoover House  

Date: 12 August 2014  

Time: 6pm -8pm  
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A piece of Gwalia History  

Stephen Fanetti  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

My father Domenic Fanetti left Italy in 1939 and come to Leonora to join his father Stepheno    

Fanetti, who was well known in the community.  

 

Domenic commenced work on the Sons of Gwalia Mine. He met his wife Florrie and they had 6    

children. He purchased their house in Tower Street Gwalia, where they lived until they moved to 

Kalgoorlie 1957, due to the uncertainty of the 

Sons of Gwalia productivity.  

 

One of the highlights of Dadõs time in Gwalia was 

when he assisted Jim Pike in the relocation of L.R. 

Comptonõs grocery store on an ex-army jinker and 

vehicle. The shop had been purchased by Victor 

Mazza.  

The building was transported in three sections 

from Station Street next to the State Hotel to Lot 

518 & 519 Tower Street where it stands today.  

 

 

The òLeonora Pharmacy Shieldó  was presented 

to  the  òLeonora Rifle Clubó for  the Annual Competition. 

Barry Robertson, donated the shield to the  Gwalia Museum 

in May this year.  

 

During his visit Barry also shared information about his    

uncle Lce. Cpl.  Neil Robertson and gave us photographs we 

can use in our World War 1 exhibition. Read in the next 

newsletter about Neil Robertson.  

 

 

 

The Fanetti family presented the framed            

photographs to Gail Ross, Gwalia Museum      

Manager 

The L.R. Crompton shop before it was relocated        

to Tower Street 

Donation of òLeonora Pharmacy Shieldó 

Gail Ross receiving Barryõs  donation  of  

the shield on behalf of Gwalia Museum 

The Shire of Leonora would like to acknowledge  

Stephen Fanetti and Family 

for the  donation to Gwalia ghost town & museum. 

Thank you for sharing your family history. 

The Shire of Leonora would like to thank 

Barry Robertson 

for the  donation to Gwalia ghost town & museum.  
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The Wesleyans In Gwalia  

Arlene Collings  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It was a long way over a rough track as the young schoolgirl went searching. She was looking for 

the heel of her motherõs shoe, wrenched off on the way home from church. Ladies were         

beautifully  dressed, despite the heat  and dust  and    

isolation, fashion was important.  

  

It was 1916 and the Beatty family had moved to Tower 

Hill to the Underground Managerõs house (Sons of  

Gwalia Gold mine) and Gladys Beatty, 11 years old, was 

attending the local school in Johnston Street. Having 

found the heel, her father used an iron shoe -last to 

mend it. This experience was often repeated.  

  

The  Wesleyan  Methodist  Church  was  near  the         

eastern  edge of Mount Leonora, way beyond the back 

of Hoover Houseõs chook pens and on mining lease 

491c.  

  

The  little  white  corrugated 

iron  building  had  been      

jinkered from Malcolm by a donkey team in 1899. It was 24 feet by 24 

feet and a ceiling height of 14 feet and set on mulga stumps and with a 

pug and canvas floor. Next door a manse was built. Initially the Church 

was also used as the first Government school with Mr. Hewson as the 

teacher.  

  

Many children attended the Sunday school. In 1917 in the space of 6 

hours volunteers built on the back of the main building a Sunday 

school room (also used as the Scout hall).  

 

This little  church was important part of the community and a popular 

meeting  place.  Many  families  including  the  tough  mining  men          

attending, concerts were held and musical instruments played.  

 

Gladys became the church organist and played on the old pedal organ 

each Sunday and for weddings and other occasions. By 1928 a new  

organ was needed and a bazaar was held in the local A.W.U. hall to 

raise the money needed. There was a series of Methodist ministers sent 

to this remote congregation.  

 

Gladys told many stories of life at the church, how one minister would go to the Beatty house for 

a  roast  chicken  dinner  after  the  service  and       

insisted on eating the  tail or òparsonõs noseó of the 

chicken. Another had a severe breakdown as he 

depended on the poor offerings of the equally 

poor miners and the money was short. One of the 

ministers was in a wheelchair but he wrote the 

most beautiful poetry.  

 

Today no trace remains of the iron church, just 

some small broken fragments of old teacups, a 

slab of cement, probably the front step, and the 

haunting winds blowing across the place where 

once homes and life and laughter and worship all 

took place.     

  

  

  

The Wesleyan Church in Gwalia  

Artist: Arlene Collings 

Bessie Beatty and her  

daughter Gladys  

Arlene and Roland Collings on the site of the 

Church during a recent visit 














